
Adopted:  February 11, 2021 – As Written 

 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD 

 
MINUTES 

 
JANUARY 28, 2021 

 
  
 PAGES 
 
  1  Appointment of Alternate Member 
 
  1  Review and Acceptance of Minutes 

 December 10, 2020 – Adopted as written 
 
  1  Public Hearing – Zoning Amendments proposed by the  
    Board of Selectmen 

 §190 – Definitions – Short-Term Rental 
 §190 – Zoning – Attachment 2, Permitted Use Table 

 
  4  Public Hearing – Zoning Amendments proposed by the  
    Planning Board  

 §190-13.B.(4)(a) – Older Home Conversions 

 §190-13.B.(4)(b)[3]; §190-14.B.(4)(b)[3]; §190-
15.B.(4)(b)[3]; §190-16.B.(4)(b)[3]; §190-
17.C.(5)(b)[3]; §190-18.B.(5)(b)[3]; §190-
19.B.(5)(b)[3]; §190-20.B.(5)(b)[3]; and §190-
24.B.(4)(b)[3] – Accessory Dwelling Units 

 §190-13.K.(11) – Kennels 

 §190-13.B.(4); §190-15.B.(4); §190-16.B.(4); §190-
18.B.(5); §190-19.B.(5); §190-20.B.(5); and §190-
24.B.(4) – Compact Cluster Housing Developments 

 

  6  Public Hearing – Zoning Amendments proposed by petition 

 None 
 

  6  Other Business 

 Bear Hill Development, LLC/Vertex Towers, LLC 
(PID 219-243.1) – Request for Concurrent Site Plan 
and Subdivision Review  

 
   
 
   



Adopted:  February 11, 2021 – As Written 

CONWAY PLANNING BOARD 
 

MINUTES 
 

JANUARY 28, 2021 
 
A meeting of the Conway Planning Board was held on Thursday, January 28, 2021 beginning at 
7:03 pm at the Conway Parks & Recreation Department, Marshall Gymnasium, 176 Main Street 
in Conway Village, NH.  Those present were:  Chair, Steven Hartmann; Selectmen’s 
Representative, Steven Porter; Secretary, Sarah Frechette; Bill Barbin; Ailie Byers; Earl Sires; 
Alternate, Steven Steiner; Planning Director, Thomas Irving; and Planning Assistant, Holly 
Meserve.   
 
APPOINTMENT OF ALTERNATE MEMBER 
 
Mr. Hartmann appointed Mr. Steiner as a voting member. 
 
REVIEW AND ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES 
 
Mr. Porter made a motion, seconded by Ms. Byers, to approve the Minutes of December 
10, 2020 as written.  Motion carried with Mr. Barbin and Mr. Hartmann abstaining from 
voting.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING AMENDMENTS PROPOSED BY THE BOARD OF 
SELECTMEN  
 
§190 – Definitions – The purpose of this amendment is to add a definition of Short-Term Rental 
as follows “Short Term Rental: The rental of a dwelling unit for periods of less than thirty (30) 
days, rented or offered for rent for fifteen (15) or more days in a calendar year and where the 
dwelling unit is not associated with commercial activities such as a hotel, motel, or bed and 
breakfast.  This is a non-residential use.  A qualified short-term rental must have a business 
license in good standing from the Board of Selectmen.”   
 
Mr. Hartmann asked for Board comment; there was none. 
 
Mr. Hartmann opened the public hearing at 7:05 pm.  Mr. Hartmann asked for public comment; 
Shawn Bergeron stated he commends the Planning Board, the Board of Selectmen and Town 
Staff for tackling an unattractive item.  Mr. Bergeron stated he would suggest the addition “that 
must be issued a certificate of occupancy” after this is a non-residential use.   
 
Mr. Bergeron stated many or most of the structures are single family homes which do not get 
inspected or issued a certificate of occupancy. Mr. Bergeron stated if they are used for short term 
rental, they should be required to have a certificate of occupancy that demonstrates a code of 
compliance.  Mr. Irving stated this Board did not propose this amendment; therefore, they cannot 
change it.  
 



Adopted: February 11, 2021 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – JANUARY 28, 2021 

 

PAGE 2 OF 6 
 

Debbie Iampietro of Deerbrook Condominiums stated she does not think this is a good idea, and 
should be voted down.  Ms. Iampietro stated our town will be overrun by investors and drive up 
the prices.  Ms. Iampietro stated she owns a duplex, and the noise is crazy; the owner of the other 
unit did nothing and the Association did nothing.  Ms. Iampietro stated most Associations do not 
want to deal with this issue.  
 
Ms. Iampietro stated even with the regulations that go in place the hassle and stress of having to 
deal with different people every week is horrible.  Ms. Iampietro stated this regulation does not 
address seasonal rentals, and they are just as much of a problem as short-term rentals.  Ms. 
Iampietro stated these do not address shared services; if you share a septic and/or a well, they 
potentially abuse and put strain on your infrastructure that costs you money. 
 
Ms. Iampietro stated short term rentals are taking away from the hotels, and these are in the same 
category as a hotel; and commercial entities are not allowed in the residential zone.  Ms. 
Iampietro stated it has already been established by the zoning laws that short term rentals are not 
allowed; it should be kept that way for peace and quiet.   
 
Nella Thompson stated she grew up here, and this valley has been built on tourism; without 
tourism we wouldn’t have a Valley.  Ms. Thompson stated she is also a realtor, and it is not good 
for the Valley to ban them out right either.  Ms. Thompson stated we need to save the town; if 
this does not go into effect property values are going to decrease significantly.  Ms. Thompson 
stated as to stay at hotels, they are not for all people.  Ms. Thompson stated it is not a 
commercially zoned thing. Ms. Thompson stated you could have a  bad neighbor and there is 
nothing you can do about it; we need to meet in the middle so it works for everyone.  
 
Brendan Battenfelder stated short term rentals are here, and they have been here.  Mr. 
Battenfelder stated we have been voted #1 ski resort in the Nation; we are a ski town and a 
vacation town.  Mr. Battenfelder stated we also deserve to live in a community that is quiet and 
peaceful, where we can raise our families and be surrounded by respectful neighbors.  
 
Mr. Battenfelder stated he respects those concerns if you don’t get along with your neighbor. Mr. 
Battenfelder stated if you have to call the police every weekend that is unacceptable but, they are 
here; and if we choose to vote this down and not put in this definition then we divert back to the 
Town’s original position that these are illegal uses in a residential zone.  
 
Mr. Battenfelder stated and that will bring up to 500 cease and desist orders and there will be 
lawsuits.  Mr. Battenfelder stated if the definition is accepted, we than have the ability to put 
structure in place to manage it.  Mr. Battenfelder stated if we don’t put the structure in place, 
then we will have to continue to use tools the Town has to work through those which will likely 
end up in Superior Court and still have no solution. Mr. Battenfelder stated allow it to be 
controlled; it is a reasonable step forward.   
 
Scott Kudrick stated he was on the Short-Term Rental Committee.  Mr. Kudrick stated travel has 
really changed over the years.  Mr. Kudrick stated we have seen seasonal homes and second 
homes for decades in this valley; second homes started with seasonal homes being rented.  Mr. 
Kudrick stated he would ask that Board to support to regulate and stop the problem properties.   



Adopted: February 11, 2021 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – JANUARY 28, 2021 

 

PAGE 3 OF 6 
 

Mr. Hartmann closed public comment at 7:24 pm.  Mr. Irving stated he has received a number of 
emails in regards to this topic and submitted print outs of those emails to the Board.  The Board 
reviewed the emails.   
 
Mr. Hartmann asked for Board comment; Mr. Sires stated one of the strengths of the packet we 
were presented with is if it passes it is not necessarily set-in stone; and it is something the Board 
of Selectmen can make modifications to.  
 
Mr. Sires stated he is someone who believes there is an affordability impact and strain on the 
inventory due to short term rentals; however, he personally is not a fan of an outright ban. Mr. 
Sires stated he would rather see a more balanced approach to get a handle on them. Mr. Sires 
stated the local trades due benefit from them and if there were an outright ban on them it could 
have an impact on those means.   
 
Mr. Sires stated since there is a balanced approach being taken and there is an option to make 
changes, this is probably the best option available to us. Mr. Sires stated he would urge the Board 
to support the amendment. 
 
Mr. Steiner made a motion, seconded by Mr. Barbin, to recommend the Board of 
Selectmen’s proposed definition of Short-Term Rental on the warrant.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
§190 – Zoning – Attachment 2, Permitted Use Table – The purpose of this amendment is to 
include Short Term Rentals as a permitted use in all zones where single-family residences are 
currently permitted.   
 
Mr. Hartmann asked for Board comment; there was none.  Mr. Hartmann opened the public 
hearing at 7:30 pm.  Mr. Hartmann asked for public comment; Debbie Iampietro stated if this 
passes and are allowed there should be some sort of compromise; maybe only in single family 
houses and not ones with a shared wall such as townhouses and duplexes. Scott Kudrick asked 
what do you do when there are kids who live there long-term.    
 
Wayne Beyer stated this is turning a residential area into a commercial area. Mr. Beyer stated 
these are commercial uses; they are making money by renting their houses short-term.  Mr. 
Beyer stated there are fines if you don’t comply with a cease-and-desist order; the Town can 
collect those fees as well as attorney fees.  Mr. Beyer stated if this was done with a number of 
people; it would get their attention and would probably cease to exist.   
 
Brendan Battenfelder stated in regards to commercial versus residential there are six state 
Supreme Courts that have ruled that renting a home is a residential use.  Mr. Battenfelder stated 
to the lawsuit factor, the Town is caught in this mess with many other Towns; the Judge will 
likely stay those fines or allow them to continue to rent until there is a judgement.   
 
Mary Seavey stated she personally feels this decision does not lie with the Planning Board or the 
Board of Selectmen, but with the legislative body. Ms. Seavey stated this should be on the 
warrant for the legislative body to make the decision.  



Adopted: February 11, 2021 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – JANUARY 28, 2021 

 

PAGE 4 OF 6 
 

Mr. Hartmann closed public comment at 7:44 pm.   Mr. Porter made a motion, seconded by 
Ms. Byers, to recommend the Board of Selectmen’s proposed amendment to §190- Zoning 
– Attachment 2, Permitted Use Table on the warrant.  Motion carried with Ms. Frechette 
voting in the negative.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING AMENDMENTS PROPOSED BY THE PLANNING 
BOARD 
 
§190-13.B.(4)(a) – Older Home Conversions – The purpose of this amendment is to make the 
“Older Home” provision in the residential agricultural district consistent with that in the other 
districts and renumber the ordinance accordingly.  Mr. Irving stated this amendment will make it 
consistent with the other districts.    
 
Mr. Hartmann asked for Board comment;  there was none. Mr. Hartmann opened the public 
hearing at 7:50 pm.  Mr. Hartmann asked for public comment; there was none.  Mr. Hartmann 
closed public comment at 7:50 pm.   
 
Mr. Porter made a motion, seconded by Mr. Hartmann, to recommend the proposed 
amendment to §190-13.B.(4)(a) – Older Home conversions to the warrant as written.  
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
§190-13.B.(4)(b)[3]; §190-14.B.(4)(b)[3]; §190-15.B.(4)(b)[3]; §190-16.B.(4)(b)[3]; §190-
17.C.(5)(b)[3]; §190-18.B.(5)(b)[3]; §190-19.B.(5)(b)[3]; §190-20.B.(5)(b)[3]; and §190-
24.B.(4)(b)[3] – Accessory Dwelling Units – The purpose of this amendment is to remove the 
requirement that either the primary or accessory dwelling unit be occupied by the owner and 
renumber the ordinance accordingly.   
 
Mr. Hartmann asked for Board comment; there was none.  Mr. Hartmann opened the public 
hearing at 7:51 pm.  Mr. Hartmann asked for public comment; Josh Brustin asked if a second 
home owner who only comes on weekends could still rent the accessory dwelling unit as a long-
term rental.  Mr. Irving stated the current regulation requires one of the units to be owner 
occupied, this amendment will allow them to rent both units.  Mr. Brustin stated which opens up 
more long-term rentals, which is great.    
 
Mr. Hartmann closed public comment at 7:57 pm.  Mr. Barbin made a motion, seconded by 
Ms. Byers, to recommend the proposed amendment to §190-13.B.(4)(b)[3]; §190-
14.B.(4)(b)[3]; §190-15.B.(4)(b)[3]; §190-16.B.(4)(b)[3]; §190-17.C.(5)(b)[3]; §190-
18.B.(5)(b)[3]; §190-19.B.(5)(b)[3]; §190-20.B.(5)(b)[3]; and §190-24.B.(4)(b)[3] – Accessory 
Dwelling Units to the warrant as written.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
§190-13.K.(11) - Kennels – The purpose of this amendment is to repeal the special exception for 
kennels in the residential agricultural district and renumber the ordinance accordingly.   
  
Mr. Hartmann asked for Board comment; Mr. Hartmann asked if there are any existing kennels 
that would be affected by this amendment.  Mr. Irving answered the Conway Area Humane 
Society; they would end up becoming grandfathered. 



Adopted: February 11, 2021 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – JANUARY 28, 2021 

 

PAGE 5 OF 6 
 

Mr. Hartmann opened the public hearing at 7:59 pm.  Mr. Hartmann asked for public comment; 
Tracy McCarthy stated this seems to be tightly written and asked why it was being proposed to 
be removed. Mr. Steiner stated there was a request before the Zoning Board of Adjustment and 
there was an uproar with the neighbors.  
 
Ms. McCarthy stated it seems perfectly legitimate. Mr. Irving stated it was felt that there was not 
adequate protection for the adjacent property owners. Ms. McCarthy suggested strengthening the 
ordinance rather than removing it.  
 
Mr. Hartmann closed public comment at 8:07 pm.  Mr. Steiner made a motion, seconded by 
Mr. Hartmann, to post the proposed amendment to §190-13.K.(11) – Kennels to the 
warrant as written.  Motion defeated with Ms. Frechette, Mr. Steiner and Mr. Porter 
voting in the affirmative and Mr. Barbin, Mr. Sires, Ms. Byers and Mr. Hartmann voting 
in the negative. 
 
§190-13.B.(4); §190-15.B.(4); §190-16.B.(4); §190-18.B.(5); §190-19.B.(5); §190-20.B.(5); 
and §190-24.B.(4) – Compact Cluster Housing Developments – The purpose of this 
amendment is to encourage the development of smaller single family detached dwellings and 
enhance residential housing choices in Conway; and renumber the ordinance accordingly.      
 
Mr. Hartmann asked for Board comment;  Ms. Frechette asked if this is to develop existing 
smaller detached single-family dwellings or develop non-existent smaller detached single-family 
dwellings.  Mr. Sires stated it is the development of new smaller units and increase the density 
on a piece of land. Mr. Sires stated it is for the development of 300 to 800 square foot units to be 
used for employee or transition housing, or retirement or downsizing housing.  Mr. Sires stated 
doubling the density to gain twice as many units.   
 
Mr. Porter stated there are no stipulations of having to be owner-occupied or used as a short-term 
rental; to build housing stalk there is no cap dollar amount.  Mr. Porter stated housing stalk is 
needed, but the way it is written the younger will be missed because it is either too expensive or 
not big enough for families.  Mr. Sires stated the provision prohibits short-term rentals; it is to be 
used for long term rentals.   
 
Mr. Steiner asked if it has to be on municipal water and sewer.  Mr. Sires answered in the 
affirmative.  Mr. Barbin stated he agrees there is a lot of good intent, but 800 square feet is 
almost substandard.  Mr. Barbin asked how many actual parcels of land with municipal water 
and sewer is available.  Mr. Sires stated these are smaller units, and this is not going to solve the 
housing in this area, but it is another option that a business could use to construct employee 
housing.     
 
Mr. Hartmann opened the public hearing at 8:19 pm.  Mr. Hartmann asked for public comment; 
Shawn Bergeron stated compliments to Mr. Sires for tackling this; the reality is, having gone 
through the code writing process, they are seldom done correct the first time.  Mr. Bergeron 
stated this is a good opportunity to get started.   
 



Adopted: February 11, 2021 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – JANUARY 28, 2021 

 

PAGE 6 OF 6 
 

Mr. Bergeron stated these are working successfully in other communities, and they need to be on 
municipal water and sewer.  Mr. Bergeron stated the best thing is to support with the 
understanding that it is probably not going to be perfect; over a period of time, improvements 
will need to be made, but it is a good place to start.   
 
Harrison Kanzler with the MWV Housing Coalition stated he supports this ordinance.  Mr. 
Kanzler stated it does have room for improvement, but it is a good starting place.  Mr. Kanzler 
stated we do have time to improve on and make it better.  Mr. Hartmann closed public comment 
at 8:26 pm.   
 
Mr. Hartmann asked for further Board comment; Mr. Hartmann stated he does have some 
concerns, and it comes down to cost. Mr. Hartmann stated limiting the building size is not 
always the answer. Mr. Hartmann stated we need to start looking at ways to put a cap on long-
term costs; it will go a lot further.  Mr. Sires stated he agrees that this does need improvements to 
really maximize what this could do.   
 
Mr. Hartmann made a motion, seconded by Mr. Steiner, to post the proposed amendment 
to §190-13.B.(4); §190-15.B.(4); §190-16.B.(4); §190-18.B.(5); §190-19.B.(5); §190-20.B.(5); 
and §190-24.B.(4) – Compact Cluster Housing Developments to the warrant as written.  
Motion defeated with Mr. Sires and Ms. Byers voting in the affirmative and Mr. Barbin, 
Ms. Frechette, Mr. Steiner, Mr. Hartmann and Mr. Porter voting in the negative.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING AMENDMENTS PROPOSED BY PETITION  
 
There were no proposed petitioned articles. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Bear Hill Development, LLC/Vertex Towers, LLC (PID 219-243.1) – Request for 
Concurrent Site Plan and Subdivision Review:  Mr. Hartmann made a motion, seconded 
by Mr. Steiner, to grant the request by Bear Hill Development, LLC/Vertex Towers, LLC 
for a concurrent site plan and subdivision review.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:53 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Holly L. Meserve 
Planning Assistant 








































